
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY DIRECTORS MEETING 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GA 

MEETING NOTICE 
Agenda 

 
TYPE OF MEETING 
(     ) SPECIAL CALLED  
( X ) REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
(     ) CALLED 
 
 ( X )  A QUORUM OF THE MEMBERS OF THE FOLLOWING PUBLIC  
 AGENCIES MAY BE IN ATTENDANCE AT THIS MEETING: 
 ( X )  MAYOR & COUNCIL 
 ( X )  DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 ( X )  DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 ( X )  URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF SNELLVILLE  
 
DATE OF NOTICE:  Tuesday, January 17, 2023 
DATE OF MEETING: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 
 
TIME OF MEETING: 4:00 PM 
LOCATION: Snellville City Hall – 2nd Floor, Room 259 
 
 
AGENDA: 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. MINUTES 
 
III. REPORTS 

A. Financial, Dan LeClair 
B. Cobblestone, Angie Strickland 
C. Grove, Matthew Pepper 

 
IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consideration and Action on the Authority’s recommendation to the Mayor and City Council 
for the appointment to the vacant seat.  
B. Discussion on the City’s Centennial. 

 
V. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Discussion on progress of Cobblestone Capital Improvement Project. 
B. Discussion on Cobblestone Business.  

 
VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 The next regular meeting is on February 15, 2023 at 4 PM at City Hall. 
 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY DIRECTORS MEETING 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GA 

MEETING NOTICE 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
NOTIFICATION: 
GWINNETT DAILY POST       10:00 AM 1/17/2023 
ATLANTA JOURNAL "GWINNETT EXTRA    10:00 AM 1/17/2023 
 
As set forth in the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1992, the City of Snellville does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the 
admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs or activities.  Butch Sanders, 2342 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia 
30078 has been designated to coordinate compliance with the non-discrimination requirements contained in Section 35.107 of the 
Department of Justice Regulations.  Information concerning the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the rights provided 
thereunder, are available from the ADA Coordinator. 
 
The City of Snellville will assist citizens with special needs given proper notice (seven working days).  Any requests for reasonable 
accommodations required by individuals to fully participate in any open meeting, program or activity of the City of Snellville should be 
directed to ADA Coordinator, 2342 Oak Road, Snellville, Georgia 30078, telephone number 770-985-3503. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
An Executive session may be called to discuss pending and/or potential litigation, settlement claims, administrative proceedings or other 
judicial actions, which is exempt from the open meetings act pursuant to O.C.G.A. section 50-14-2-(1). Further, discussion may include 
future acquisition, disposition, contract to purchase, and lease of real estate, which is excluded from the open meetings act pursuant to 
 
O.C.G.A. section 50-14-3-(4). Upon the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring, disciplinary action or dismissal, or periodic 
evaluation or rating of a public officer or employee, which is excluded pursuant to O.C.G.A. section 50-14-3-(6). 



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY DIRECTORS MEETING 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GA 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

December 14, 2022 
 
Members: Don Britt, Chairman; Deborah Jones, Dan LeClair, Dave Emanuel, Emmett Clower, and 
Rafiq Ukani. 
 
Guests: Barbara Bender, Mayor; Jamey Toney, Toney Financial Services; Angie Strickland, 
Cobblestone Property Manager; Matthew Pepper, Assistant City Manager. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Britt called the meeting to order at 4:01 PM. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Mr. Emanuel made a motion, seconded by Mr. Ukani, to approve the minutes for the meeting held on 
November 16, 2022. Six (6) in favor and zero (0) opposed, motion approved. 
 
REPORTS 
Financial Report 
Mr. LeClair provided the financial report for November 2022. 
 
Cobblestone Report 
Ms. Strickland provided a report on the Cobblestone Office Park.  
 
The Grove Report 
Mr. Pepper provided a report on the Grove project.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Consideration and Action on the Authority’s Appointments for the Snellville Tourism and Trade  
Mr. Britt informed the Authority that they are responsible to make recommendations on appointees for 
two of the seats on the Snellville Tourism and Trade (STAT) Board. Both of the seats have been 
recently vacated. The STAT Board received an application from Liz Jackson. The Authority reviewed 
Ms. Jackson’s application. During the review, Mr. Britt explained that the Authority cannot directly 
appoint Ms. Jackson to the STAT Board, rather that they would only recommend her appointment. 
 
Mr. Clower made a motion, seconded by Mr. Emanuel, to recommend to the Snellville Tourism and 
Trade Board that Liz Jackson be appointed a member of that Board. Six (6) in favor and zero (0) 
opposed, motion approved. 
 
Discussion on the Authority’s Current Vacancy 
Mr. Toney introduced himself to the Authority. During his introduction, he expressed his interest in 
serving on the Authority. Mr. Britt informed the Authority that they will proceed with recommending to 
the Mayor and Council that they appoint Mr. Toney to the vacant seat in January, assuming there are not 
objections. No members objected to Mr. Toney’s appointment to the Authority.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Discussion on Progress of Cobblestone Capital Improvement Project 
Mr. Pepper presented the project engineer’s monthly progress report on the Cobblestone Capital 
Improvement Project. During the discussion, Mr. Pepper reported that last major task is to paint the  



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY DIRECTORS MEETING 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GA 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
exterior wood surfaces (e.g. – soffit, fascia, and siding). As it stands, the contractor has painted the 
hardiplank siding on Buildings E, F, and G. The project should be completed by early January (weather 
permitting).  
 
During the discussion, the Authority expressed concern about standing water on the north side of 
Building C. As part of the project, the contractor repaired existing drainage issues at Building C. The 
Authority will ask the contractor to alter the grade surrounding the new drain so that the water drains to 
it. Mr. Pepper will communicate this request to Mr. Kaiser (the project manager).  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
None 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Emanuel made a motion, seconded by Mr. Clower, to adjourn. Six (6) in favor and zero (0) opposed, 
motion approved. The meeting adjourned at 4:31 PM. 
 
 
Approved as presented. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________  
   Downtown Development Authority, Chair 

 
 
 ___________________________________  
   Secretary 

 



Cobblestone Report  

January 18, 2023  
 
Old Business:  
1) D-102 Liability Insurance Status – No update. 
 
2) Landscaping for Building C 

a) We do not have funding to put bushes on the side of Building C. Staff will pine straw this 
area. Once Multiplex finishes the addressing the drainage issue, staff will replace the 
existing railroad ties with timbers for safety and aesthetics. 

 
3) Brass Exterior Door Lights 

a) The brass exterior door lights are in poor condition. Staff attempted to polish them without 
success. The Authority will need to consider replacing the exterior lights. 

 
4) Mailboxes – Mailboxes were not in the bid package. Torres painted the mailboxes in the same 

color as the doors. 
 
New Business: 
1) D-100E/A/Closet – the current lease is up for renewal on February 28. The Authority will need 

to discuss the renewal option.  
 
2) Building D Plumbing Issues 

a) Three (3) major floods in four (4) months. 
b) We used to have fresh water running through those pipes daily-with the salon. 
c) The water bill has more than doubled for this month. 
d) Staff requests that the Authority discuss hiring a large plumbing operation to figure out the 

problem for a permanent fix. 
 
3) Building G Plumbing Issues 

a) Staff detected a leaking hose bib on the outside of the building. Consequently, the water bill 
is higher than usual.  

 
Available Space (five spaces):  
 
Medium/Large: 
1) C-201 – 1,362 sf; rent – $2,343 
2) F-200 – 841 sf; rent – $1,296 
 
Executive Suites: 
1) C-216/217 – 416 sf; rent – $795, $1035 with new carpet. One (1) young start up called on this 

suite. 
2) C-214 – 190 sf; rent – $490 
3) C-211 – 163 sf; rent – $420. One (1) call on this suite.  










